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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWNI PHYSICAL APPEARANce

The Lexin9ton Green Historic District consists of thirteen properties surrounding the lex-
ington Battle Green. The Green itself is a National Historic ~ndmark in recognit~on of
the encounter between the patriot Minute Men and British troops which tOQk place there on
April 19, 1775. Of the conti9Uous properties surrounding the Green, thiee of the existin9
structures were witnesses of that battle. Most of the remain~n9 structures were built
within the next half century after the close of the Revolution. Thus, the area is vis-
ually and architecturally coherent, pr~serving a pleasant human scale in the buildings
which face the shaded park space of the Green.

The cOlmlercia1 district of Iaxington Center begins inuned,iatelyto the east of the Green
area on Massachusetts Avenue. Design control exercised by the local historic district
commission and beautification efforts in the mid-1960's by local a~chitects have combined
to keep the business c@nter of the town compatible with the Green.

The a~chitectu~al highlight of the district is the First Parish Church (*6). Designed in
1847 by Xsaac Melvin, cambridge architect and later par~er of Ammi B. Young, this hand-
some Classical Revival building stands at ,the northwest corner of the Green. The ~ain
block'is two stories high with a ridge -Z'oof...'From··the ·front-of ·thi:sclapboard 'chtn'ch' pro-
jects a ~ectangular pavilion with a balustrade above the corpice. The side walls of the
recessed entrimce portico terminate in Xonic pilasters, the capitals of which Ulatch the
two Ionic cO~umn5 defining the space in front of the door. The door is framed by Ionic
pilasters supporting a heavy flat entablature. The four-stage steeple is made up of a
fectangular clock tower surmounted by an octagonal lantern, circular drum and octagonal
spire. The front facade and the projecting pavilion are covered with flush boarding.
L4ter additions include a low vestry to the rear, added 'in 1871 and enlarged in 1908. The
porte-cochere over the driveway on the east sid~was also added ,in 1908.

In contrast to the First Parish Church is the'Hancock Congregational Church (18), d@s1gned
by Walter J. Paine.of ~o5ton and bu~lt by Dodge Brothers of Somerville in 1892-1893. The
original building is fieldstone and is two stories with a ridge roof running parallel to
the street. On the east end is a square, buttressed tower with a pyramidal roof. An
archway is cut through the tower, and to the right is the recessed entrance porch with a
double arched doorway. From the roof of the western end of the ori9inal,bloclt emerges
an extremely wide dormer clad in green slate in which is recessed a four-p.rt diamond paned
w1ndow strip. Below this, proj@cting forward from the facade is a five-sided bay s~unted
by a conical roof. Originally of fieldstone, the bay is now covere~ with stucco scored to
look like stone blocks in regular ashlar course. Th~s treatment is continue~ in the ~9S0's
addition to the west end of the building.

On the opposite side of the Green ,is the Masonic Building (#3). Built in 1922 to house the
I.exington Academy, the origi.nal building had a tall ornamental cupola emerging from the
pedimented end of the roof. Although this. feature no longer s~ive$, the basic two-
story b~ock and ell remain. The roof has had its present modified hip appearance and den-
tiled cornice since at least the 1890'10 and possibly earlier. The tripartite division of
the main facade. ~rked now by foundation-to-cornice Tuscan pilasters at the corners and
on each side of the door, has been a permanent feature of the building'S appearance.

All three of the remaining pre-Revolutionary buildings facing the Green have been altered
by restoration. The Jonathan Harrin9ton HOUse (*4) was r8DlOdeled in 1910 by owner 'U!7:oy
Brown. Old views show a high hip ~oof, center entrance, cent@r chimney dwellinq which'
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Lexington Green HistoriC District is most widely recognized as the scene of the Rev-
olution_ry War encounter of April 19, 1775. It is also si9nificant as the focal point
of the town's religious and civic history after it was set aside from cambridge as the
separate parish of cambridge Forms in 1692. The area is associated with so~ of Lex-
inqton's most prominent families, notably the Munroes, Harringtons, Buckmans and Meriams.

One of the oldest buildings in the district is the Marrett and Nathan Munroe House (#9)
which was built around'1730 by John Munroe, one of the ,earliest settlers in the qreen
area •.-Tha house became--the--home-of Johtrv 'sorr1tar~ett-in 1737,--and at- the' timEi o'f the'
Revolution the house_was occupied by Marrett's son Nathan.

The Ha~ringtcn family was associated with at least three houses around the Green (#4, #5
and '12). The family was established in Le~inqton with the arrival from Watertown of
two cousins. John and Robert Harrington. who came to the town around 1713. The earliest,
Harrington House on the Green was occupied in 1775 by Jonathon Harrington (grandson of the
first John) who ~as mortally wounded in tAe fateful battle of April 19. In the 1820's

, tAe--house was owned by shoemaker-philanthropist -John Augustus who endeavored to teach.
hts __trade ..tc) young,,-offenders of the law and',·inculcate··in the1lr more 'soci.-lly respons:il::lle
ha))its. thQS est:a.bl±shi-nqone of the earliest systems of _probation. Latex in 'the nine-
teenth century the hoUse was the center of the Chittenden and Burr 'clock makers' works;

Another of the earliest structures around the Green is the Buckman Tavern (#1) built aroun
the time the town was incorporated in 1713. It was here that 'the Minute Men awaited the
"rival of the British the night of April 18-19; in the mid'-nineteenth cent~y the 'rave:rn
became the residence of the Mariam family.

Also closely associat~d with the history of the town is the old Burying Ground behind the
First Parish Church. The earliest stone dates from 1690 and later liItonesreveal the
development of the art of slate-carving. Here the patriot dead were buried after the
Battle and rested here until 1831 when, with great ceremony, the bodies were removed to
a new grave near the 1799 Monument on the Green. Here also is the grave of captain Par-
ker who led the Minute Men, ~ot only on April 19, 1775, but also at Bunker Hill.

fron 1690 when the Pari$h of Cambridge Farms was established until 1846, the first Parish
of Lexinqton had built its meeting houses on the Green; In 1846, after extensive refur-
bishing, by architect Isaac MelVin, the third meeting house on that site burned to 'the
ground. The present First Parish Church (16'>, trom designs of Melvin, was its replacement

continued

WWO:J lSIH SS'OI R7.LC )7.) )IQ V\/~ 7C'7' Cflfl7JCI/C'A



0;.. ·IIMAJOR BIBLIOGR .·oHlCAL REFERENCES

Greeley, Williazn Roger. Notes on the History of the First parish Church in Lexington:
1691-1941.

Hudson, Chules. History of the 'l'own of Legington. Vols. I and II. R.~vised and con-
tinued to 1912 1'7 the Lwtinqton Historical ·Society. Boston and NewYork: Boughton
Mifflin, 1.912.

proceeding$ of the Le~~qton Historical. Society. Vols. 1, 2, 3, and 4.

DDGEOGRAPHlCALDATA
ACREAGE OF •• OMINIoTED PAOI"&AlY 15.87 acres.
UTM AEFEAl!NCES

VERBALBOUNDARYDESCRIPTIONFrom Massachusetts Avenue at the northern side of Merialft
Street, northeast to the Boston and Maine Bai1road tracks, northwest along the western !if,
of track right of way to Hanoock Stz:eet, across Hancock Street along property line of #3
Bedford Street, across Bedford street to northern property line of 11 Harrington Road,
follow rear property lines of fn Harrington ~ad to t? Harrington Road, thus enclo&ing alj
of #5 Harrington ~ad, follow property line of *7 Harrington Road to boundary of the Old
Burying G:toWld, continue around the Burying GroW1d to intersection with property line of
#7 Harrington ~ad, SQutheast along ) j De of '2 Harr; ~tQn Road to 6cont; nll.dli .

liST ALL STATES AND COUNTIES FOR PROPERTIES OVERLA PING STATE OR C UNTY 80UN ARIES

STATIi- CODe '.- COUNlY CODe

STATE CODE COUNn' CODE

mFORM PREPARED BY
NAMli/nTLE

.•Judy [). Dobbs, National· Register Editpr" and Eli zabe1:b.W. Reinhardt. Legingtpn Histpric
OtiGANIZATIQN

STREE't& NUMBER

294 Washington Street

Comrpissi pD·
DATE CollUldssion

- March· 30, .1976.·Massachus@tt:s HistOrical
TELEPHONe .

617-727-8470
ON OR TOWN STATE

Massachysetts 02108Boston
ISSTATE mSTORICPRESERVATION OFFICER CERTIFICATION

THE EVALUATED SIGNIFICANCE OF THIS PROPERTY WITHIN THE STATE IS:

NATIONAl~ 5TATE_ LOCAl_

As the designated St.ate Historic: Preservation Offie., fo, the National Historic: Preservation Act of 1966 I Public Law 89.6851. I
hereby nominllte this propeny for inclusiot' in the National Regi$tl!lr af'CIcenify that it has been evaluated aecording to the
c:riteria and procedures sat forth by the National Park 5e

STAn HISTORIC PAESIi"VATION OFFICER SIGNATURE

800/t·OO ®
l'Hl03 lSIH SS'OI



Fo,m No ~·300a
,i\C\O 10-74i _

UNln.:O STATES Ol;:PARTMtl~T o- THl; INTERIOR
NATIONAL PARK SERVICE

FOR NPS use ONLY

NA TIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES
INVENTOR Y ....NOMINATION FORM

RECEIVEO

DATE ENTERED

CONTINUATION SHEET ITEM NUMBER 7 & 8 PAGE 1

#7:
is five bays wide and two deep .. Brawn's alteration re~ved the old chimney and replaced
it ~ith two smaller ones - one to the left of center and one on the eastern slope of
the roof. Although the fenestration remains unchanqed, the doorway was altered from
one with a simple entablature supported by pilaste~s to the present modillioned and den-
tiled pediment over a door with crossetted surround flanked by Tuscan pilasters. Brown
also altered the Marrett and Nathan Munroe House (#9) in 1915. resorting to similar de-
vices.

Buckman Tavern (#1) (HAaS and NHL) was also restored in the 20th century. Restoration
in this case was more sCholarly than with the Harrington and Munroe houses, and a genuine
attempt to replicate the appearance of the tavern as depicted'~n Doolittle prints_of the
Battle of Lexington was made by local architect William Roqer Greeley in.the 1920~s.

Of the ~wc other~-18th'century houses-facing·the-Green; the·Nathaniel·Harrington Ho~se
<#12) is the most interesting. R@puted ~o be the first all-brick house in Lexington.
it has been called the Uhoneymoonll cottage Of the Harringtons. The main block of briok
is five bays wide with a center entrance and a chtmney at each end. The lintels of the
door and all windows are simple granite slabs. The roof was altered in 1874' to a man-
sard. and reetor~d to its ·original hip_.-ahape in _1926 :by William Roqer Greeley. It is
probable that the door was ·modified at the same time, the fine·denti1 course of the co~-
nice and the_reeding of the.frie2e being more probably Colonial Reviva1· than original.
Later.;..adaitions.ine.lude·.the···lB30"si~ porch' CUld expansions -of the kitchen area .:tothe
rear -in 1920.

The district.is located within the local distric~ known a~ the Battle Green Historic
District, established in 1956 :by special act of the Massachusetts legislature.

i8!
The fix'st occupant of the Acad.emy Builoinq (*3) was the Lexington Academy, Which failed
after ten years'. In 1837 Horace Mann became the first heaa of the state' s new Board of
Education, and one of his reforms involved the establishment of Normal Schools for the
training of publio school teachers. In 1839 the first Normal School in the country began
in the Academy BuildUlq in I.exington under the Clirection of Cyrus Pierce. Pierce was
succeeded in 1842 by Reverend Samuel J. Hay, abolitionist, transcendentalist, and uncle
of Louisa May Alcott. During May's direction of the SChool, it continued to grow until
it was forced to move to larger quarters in Framingham in 1844. Samuel May also served
a brief term as minister to the ~irst PariSh Church in 1843. The Lexington Academy
Building was occupied by the congr~gation of the Hancock United Church of Christ from

·1867, when the church was orqanized, until 1893. when the p~esent Hanco~k Congxegational
Church (#8) was constructed. The Academy Building was also used as a Memorial Hall, with
shops with living quarters above, an early movie theatre, and since 1917 as the home of
the Simon w. Robinson Lodge of Free Masons.
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10;

Massachusetts Avenue, across Massachusetts Avenue to northwest property line of
#1932 Massachusetts Avenue, follow property line'of #1932 Massachusetts Avenue
southwest, then southeast to intersection with property line of #1912 Massachusetts
Avenue, continue across back line of t1912 Massachusetts Avenue to intersection
with soqtheast ~operty line of #1906 Massachusetts Avenue, follow line across
southeast boundary of 1900 and 1894 Massachusetts Avenue to intersection with
southwest property line of 1888 Massachusetts Avenue, follow southwest property
line to north side of Clar~ Street, cross Massachusetts Avenue from north side
of Clark Street to North side of Meriam Street.
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Justification for inclusion of the Visitors 'Center in the Lexington Green Historic
District:

The Visitors' Center (Town Information Center) (#13) was built in 1960. It
faces the Green and is an integral part of the grouping of buildings in the
district. Although Q reproduotion of an earlier style, the Visitors' Center
is aensd ti vely designed and blends in lo7el.l. wi th the rest Q£ the area where
visually it is not considered an intrusion.

The Visitors' Center is a white clapboard structure with a
is six bays wide ana two bays deep. There are three front
brick chimney slightly to the right of the center dormer.
black louvered shutters and have eight over twelve lights.
six over six lights. The entrance is situated slightly to
and has double paneled dOQrs.

gambrel roof and
dormers and a
The windows have

The dormers have
the left of center

-The southeast boundary of the Lexinqton Green Historic District is fozmed by
the Boston and Maine Railroad and Meriam Street. The land on which the
Visitors' Center and the BUckman Tavern stand is owned by the tpwn and so it
is ~oSica~ to include the entirs parce~ in the district.
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Lexington Creen Proposed National Register District - Map Key

1. Buckman Tavern - 1713,(HABS) - l Bedford St. (National Historic Landmark)

2. Red Cross BuUding - Early 19'C11Century, put together from older"components

3. Firs,t Normal Schoe l, Now Masonic Building - 1822 • 3 Bedford St.
4. Jonathon Harrington House, mid l~b tentu~y - 1 Harrington Rd. (HABS)
5. George Harrington House, 1799 - 5 Harrington Rd.
6. First Parisb Church, 1847 - 7 Harrington Rd.

7. 1932 Massachusetts Ave. , c.1850
8. Hancock Congregational Church, 1892 - 1912 Massachusetts Avenue.
9. Marrett and Nathan Munroe House,tc1730 -1906 Massachusetts Ave.
10. 1900 Mass. Ave. - c. 1850

11. 1894 ~as$achusett$ Ave. - c. 1850

12. Nathaniel Harrington House - c. 1790 - 18S8 Massachusetts Ave.

13., ,TownInformation Center, 1960 -
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